
 

1 of 2 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN SPECIAL SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, May 26, 2015 

 
TIME:   6:00 p.m. 

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 

  
PURPOSE:  Special City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
  
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss 
any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves 
by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

AGENDA 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW]  

1. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1974, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for and on 
behalf of the City, a Development Agreement, by and between the City and the Henderson-Wessendorff 
Foundation.  (Jeanne H. McDonald, Attorney) 
 

2. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One, a subdivision 
of 72.446 acres of land situated in the B.B.B. and C. Railroad Company Survey, Section 13, Abstract 140, and in 
the Francis H. Demay Survey, Abstract 350, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 5 reserves, (67.326 acres), 
3 blocks.  (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development) 
 

3. Adjournment. 
 



General Comments from the Audience: 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments 
of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each speaker 
is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from 
discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 26, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

1 Resolution No. R-1974 – Development Agreement with Henderson-
Wessendorff Foundation 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1974, a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, a Development Agreement, by and between the City and the Henderson-
Wessendorff Foundation. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1974 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

Jeanne H. McDonald/tlt 
 
Jeanne H. McDonald, 
Attorney 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[X] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney 
[X] City Engineer  
[X] Exec. Dir. of Community Development  
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Henderson-Wessendorff Foundation is the owner of 80.033 acres of land, of which 72.446 acres located on 
the north side of U.S. Highway 59 (IH-69) between Louise Street and FM 2218 is currently being platted for 
Texas State Technical College (TSTC) to construct technical college campus facilities.  The Plat includes 5.12 
acres of proposed public right-of-way to be dedicated.  The reason for this is that the City’s Master Thoroughfare 
Plan calls for both a north-south (Graeber Road) and an east-west (Mons Avenue) collector on the property. 
 
Normally, per City ordinance, all public streets within a development must be constructed at the time of platting.  
In this particular case, however, the streets are proposed to be developed in phases, with Graeber Road being 
completed approximately 1,000’ north from IH-69 during the first phase of construction of the campus.  An 
Agreement must be established to defer construction of remaining phases since the property and rights-of-way 
are being platted all at once.  In addition to giving the property owner the ability to defer said road construction, 
the Agreement would allow the public streets to drain through the private on-site detention to Dry Creek until the 
time at which this public street system connects to Dry Creek and can drain there in the future. 
 
Additionally, the agreement provides the City with the option to require lines to be oversized to serve land outside 
the tract, provided that the City bears the costs of the oversizing.  The City will be provided oversizing costs and 
then make the election whether to require the oversizing.  Upon completion of the line, the City will credit 
applicable impact fees owed by the property owner against the oversizing costs and pay the property owner the 
difference up to $100,000. Under current consideration is the oversizing of a water line from a 12-inch line to 
serve only this property to 16 inches that will ultimately be needed to support growth and development in this 
general area of the City and as a part of the City’s Capital Improvements Program (CIP) to meet the Fort Bend 
Subsidence District mandate to reduce groundwater withdrawals by 60% in 2025..  TSTC plans to receive bids 
on June 15, 2015 and the City will have to commit to the oversizing and provide a funding source no later than 



the June 16 City Council meeting.  If the City elects not to oversize the line, the property owner will be authorized 
to build the line in a size only to serve the property.  If the City elects to require the line under consideration to be 
oversized, the City will pay the Oversizing Costs minus any applicable impact fees up to $100,000 upon 
completion of the line. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1974. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1974 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND THE HENDERSON-WESSENDORFF 
FOUNDATION. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

Mayor to execute a Development Agreement (Agreement) between the City and the 

Henderson-Wessendorff Foundation. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



 1 
 
  

STATE OF TEXAS    § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND  § 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS  

AND THE HENDERSON-WESSENDORFF FOUNDATION 

This Development Agreement (the "Agreement") is made and entered into as of 
_______________________, 2015, by THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, a home rule 
municipality in Fort Bend County, Texas, acting by and through its governing body, the City 
Council of Rosenberg, Texas (the "City"); and THE HENDERSON-WESSENDORFF 
FOUNDATION, a Texas corporation (the "Landowner”).  

The City is a home rule city and municipal corporation that provides a full-range of 
governmental services to its citizens. The Landowner owns approximately 80.033 acres of land 
located wholly within the City’s boundaries, which acreage is more particularly described in the 
preliminary plat attached hereto as Exhibit A (the "Tract").  The City wishes to provide for the 
orderly, safe, and healthful development of land within the City's boundaries.  

The Landowner intends to convey the Tract in phases to the Texas State Technical 
College (TSTC), an institution of higher education and an agency of the State of Texas, and 
Texas State Technical College Foundation plans to develop building one of phase one of such 
technical education facility, which will to be occupied and operated by the TSTC 
(“Building One”).  The development will occur in phases; however, the Landowner anticipates 
platting the majority of the Tract in the near future. 

The Landowner and the City have determined that the feasibility of the development of 
the Tract requires an agreement providing for long-term certainty in regulatory requirements and 
development standards regarding the Tract in as much as those regulatory requirements and 
development standards apply to TSTC or as otherwise agreed to herein.  It is the intent of this 
Agreement to establish certain restrictions and commitments imposed on and made in connection 
with the development of the Tract. The City and the Landowner are proceeding in reliance on the 
enforceability of this Agreement.  

AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual agreements, covenants, and 
conditions contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the City and the 
Landowner agree as follows: 
 

Section 1. Introduction. The Tract is to be developed into a technical education 
facility to be occupied and operated by the Texas State Technical College. 

Section 2. Platting. The Landowner will plat the entire Tract in not less than two (2) 
final plats in accordance with Chapter 25 of the City’s Code of Ordinances (the “Ordinances”).  
The first such final plat will include a dedication of all of the right of way for those sections of 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1974



 2 
 
  

Mons Avenue and Graeber Road within the Tract.  A copy of said final plat will be attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B,” (the “Plat”).  Landowner may re-plat the Tract to adjust the location of 
Mons Avenue, as long as the intent of providing for Mons Avenue to traverse the entire Tract in 
an east-west direction is not negated.   

 
Section 3. Road Facilities.  Continued development of the Tract may require 

construction of two roads, Mons Avenue and Graeber Road.  The City agrees that upon approval 
of the initial final plat, Landowner is required to construct only that portion of Graeber Road 
from I-69 to that point shown on Exhibit “C”.  Thereafter, if the Landowner elects to extend 
Graeber Road or to construct any portion of Mons Avenue (the “Future Extensions”) in 
connection with a future phase of development, Landowner may do so, provided that Landowner 
submits the customary plans and specifications for City approval and such design and 
construction is not at the cost and expense of the City.  However, the City is not obligated to 
construct all or any portion of the Future Extensions to serve future phases of development by 
the Landowner, but nothing herein shall impair the City’s right to undertake a portion or all of 
the Future Extensions at the City’s sole cost and expense at such time as the City may decide.  
The City agrees to give Landowner written notice of its intent to undertake the Future Extensions 
at least ninety (90) days prior to commencement of design of the Future Extensions to allow the 
Landowner time to re-plat, provided that the City may commence such Future Extensions earlier 
upon receipt of written notice from Landowner that no re-plat is desired.  

 
 Section 4. Storm Water Transmission Rights.  Landowner is planning to construct a 
connection from Graeber Road into a new detention facility and an outfall from the drainage 
facility into Dry Creek to serve the Tract (the “Drainage System”) on Reserves C and D as 
shown on the Plat.  Landowner agrees that the City may transmit the drainage from the Initial 
Phase of Graeber Road as shown on Exhibit “C” and the drainage from the Future Extensions to 
and through the Drainage System for delivery into Dry Creek; however, Landowner will not be 
required to increase the volume of any detention pond, and this right to transmit drainage to and 
through the Drainage System shall terminate at such time as both of the following conditions are 
met: (a) Graeber Road is extended outside the Tract and completed up to Dry Creek and (b) the 
drainage from the initial portion of Graeber Road and the Future Extensions is diverted away 
from the Drainage System.  The City agrees to notify Landowner upon diversion of the drainage 
from the Future Extensions away from the Drainage System. 

 
Section 5. Fee.  The parties agree that the City's plat filing fees, as the City may amend 

them from time to time, shall be applied to the Landowner and the Tract, and the City’s review 
fees and inspection fees with respect to the construction of public infrastructure facilities, as the 
City may amend them from time to time, shall be applied to the Landowner and the Tract; 
provided, however, any such amendments adopted by the City Council shall apply uniformly 
throughout the City. 

Section 6. Water/Wastewater/Drainage Services.  The plan for an integrated water 
supply, storage, and distribution system; wastewater collection and treatment system; and 
stormwater control and drainage system to serve the Tract shall be developed in accordance for 
City review and approval.  Landowner shall pay all costs of designing and constructing such 
system including all impact fees, provided such fees are those charged by the City citywide.   



 3 
 
  

 Section 7.  Oversizing. Landowner will pay all impacts fee for each phase of 
development of the Tract.  The City will pay all costs of oversizing of lines as set out in this 
section.  If the City requests a line to be oversized, i.e. made larger to serve more than the needs 
of the Tract (the “Oversizing”), Landowner will price such line in the size needed to serve only 
the Tract and price the size requested by the City and will present to the City the Oversizing 
Costs, which will be calculated as the difference in costs to install the two sized lines, together 
with a justification for such calculation.  If the City elects to proceed with the Oversizing after 
receipt of the Oversizing Costs, the City will advise Landowner, and Landowner will proceed 
with construction of the oversized line.  If the City elects not to proceed with the Oversizing, the 
City will notify the Landowner, and Landowner will install the line in the size needed to serve 
only the Tract.  All elections by the City and all notices by the Landowner will be made in a 
timely manner so as not to delay construction of the project and to allow the City sufficient time 
to analyze the Oversizing Costs. The City may observe the construction and must approve any 
change orders that impact the Oversizing Costs. Upon completion of the line, the City will credit 
the applicable impact fees owed for the phase of development being undertaken against the 
Oversizing Costs and pay the difference to the Landowner up to a maximum of $100,000.  
 

Section 8. Termination. The City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon 
which action it shall be of no further force and effect if development on the Tract has not been 
initiated within 2 years from the date of this Agreement.   

Section 9. Waiver of Actions under Private Real Property Rights Preservation Act. 
The Landowner hereby waives its right, if any, to assert any causes of action against the City 
accruing under the Private Real Property Rights Preservation Act, Chapter 2007, Texas 
Government Code (the "Act"), that the City's execution or performance of this Agreement or any 
authorized amendment or supplements thereto may constitute, either now or in the future, a 
"Taking" of Landowner’s, Landowner’s grantee's, or a grantee's successor's "Private Real 
Property," as such terms are defined in the Act. Provided, however, that this waiver does not 
apply to, and the Landowner and Landowner’s grantees and successors do not waive their rights 
under the Act to assert a claim under the Act for any action taken by the City beyond the scope 
of this Agreement which otherwise may give rise to a cause of action under the Act. City 
understands and acknowledges that no covenants or terms of this Agreement may be construed 
as a waiver of sovereign immunity by TSTC. 

 
Section 10. Covenant Running with the Tract.  The City and the Landowner hereby 

acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is a covenant that runs with the Tract and will inure 
to the benefit of the City and Landowner and their successors, to the extent allowed by the laws 
and the Constitution of the State of Texas, unless terminated by the City pursuant to Section 8 
hereof .  This Agreement shall be recorded in the Official Records of Fort Bend County, Texas.  
The Landowner may convey all or a portion of the Tract to one or more persons who shall be 
bound by this Agreement and perform the obligations of Landowner hereunder as to that portion 
of the Tract to which such Landowner holds title.  Landowner shall provide written notice to the 
City of any conveyance of all or a portion of the Tract within thirty (30) days of such 
conveyance.  

Section 11. Notice. For the purposes of notice, the addresses of the parties, until changed 
as provided below, shall be as follows: 



 4 
 
  

City:   City of Rosenberg 
P.O. Box 32 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
Attn: City Manager 
(Phone) 832-595-3300 
(Fax) (832) 595-3311 

 
Landowner:  The Henderson-Wessendorff Foundation 

611 Morton Street 
Richmond, TX 77469 
Attn:  Pat McDonald 

    (Phone) 832-342-2044 
    (Fax) (281) 342-1116 

 

Section 12. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is illegal, invalid, or 
unenforceable under present or future laws, then, and in that event, it is the intention of the 
parties hereto that the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected.  

Section 13. Waiver.  Any failure by a party hereto to insist upon strict performance by 
the other party of any material provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver thereof 
or of any other provision hereof, and such party shall have the right at any time thereafter to 
insist upon strict performance of any and all of the provisions of this Agreement.  

Section 14. Applicable Law and Venue.  The construction and validity of this 
Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas without regard to conflicts of law 
principles. Venue shall be in Fort Bend County, Texas.  

Section 15. Further Documents.  The parties agree that at any time after execution of 
this Agreement, they will, upon request of another party, execute and deliver such further 
documents and do such further acts and things as the other party may reasonably request in order 
to effectuate the terms of this Agreement. 

 
[EXECUTION PAGES FOLLOW]  



 5 
 
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this Agreement as of the 
_______day of _____________________, 2015.  
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS 
 

 
 
       
 

ATTEST: APPROVED: 
 
 
 
         
CITY SECRETARY CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND § 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of _______________, 
2015, by ______________, as Mayor of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, a Texas municipal 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 
 
 
              
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
(NOTARY SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
  



 6 
 
  

 
THE HENDERSON-WESSENDORFF 
FOUNDATION  

 
 
By:       

 
 
      Name: _____________________________ 
 
 
      Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
     § 
COUNTY OF FORT BEND § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this _____ day of _______________, 
2015, by ______________, as __________________________ of THE HENDERSON-
WESSENDORFF FOUNDATION, a Texas corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 
 
 
              
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
(NOTARY SEAL) 

 

 

 

NOTE: Upon recording, please return to the City of Rosenberg Texas, c/o the City Secretary, at 
2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, TX 77469. 



reneel
Text Box
EXHIBIT  A



reneel
Text Box
EXHIBIT BPAGE 1 OF 2



reneel
Text Box
EXHIBIT BPAGE 2 OF 2



LJA Engineering, Inc.

2929 Briarpark Drive                                    Phone  713.953.5200

Suite 600                                                          Fax  713.953.5026
Houston, Texas  77042                                             FRN - F-1386






E
xh

ib
it 

"C
"

reneel
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
May 26, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 Final Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One, a 
subdivision of 72.446 acres of land situated in the B.B.B. and C. Railroad Company Survey, Section 13, 
Abstract 140, and in the Francis H. Demay Survey, Abstract 350, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas; 5 reserves, (67.326 acres), 3 blocks. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Final Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One 
2. Preliminary Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One – 05-20-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development 
 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Final Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One consists of 72.446 acres of land located 
on the north side of U.S. Highway 59 (IH-69) between Louise Street and FM 2218.  Texas State Technical 
College (TSTC) has selected the site to develop a technical college campus. 

The Final Plat consists of slightly less acreage than the Preliminary Plat (approved by the Planning Commission 
on May 20, 2015, and attached for referenced) because it contains only that acreage south of the centerline of 
Dry Creek, therefore having no frontage on Airport Avenue.  Specifically, it consists of five (5) reserves with 
67.326 acres in addition to 5.12 acres of proposed public right-of-way to be dedicated.  As discussed, the reason 
for the latter is that the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan calls for both a north-south (Graeber Road) and an east-
west (Mons Avenue) collector on this property.  The streets will be developed in phases, with Graeber Road 
being completed up to the north line of Reserve “A” during the first phase of construction of the campus.  An 
agreement had to be established to defer construction of the remaining phases of the collector street/s as 
appropriate since the property is being platted all at once, hence the previous Agenda Item.   

The proposed Final Plat is not in conflict with the “Subdivision” Ordinance, is in conformance with the City’s 
Master Thoroughfare Plan, and is consistent with the approved Preliminary Plat.  Planning Commission meeting 
minutes were not available at print time for this Agenda packet, but on May 20, 2015, the Planning Commission 
recommended approval to City Council of the Final Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One 
contingent on a Development Agreement to defer construction of the remaining phases of the collector street/s.  
With said Agreement having been placed on the Agenda prior to this item, staff recommends approval of the 
Final Plat. 
 









 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 3 
 

Adjournment. 
 


	Special City Council Meeting Agenda - 05-26-15
	-- General Comments from the Audience
	1 - Resolution No. R-1974 - Development Agreement with Henderson-Wessendorff Foundation
	Resolution No. R-1974

	2 - Final Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One
	Final Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One
	Preliminary Plat of Texas State Technical College Fort Bend Section One - 05-20-15

	3 - Adjournment



